Public Document Pack

Your ref:
Our ref:
Enquiries to: Nichola Turnbull
Email: nichola.turnbull@northumberland.gov.uk
Tel direct: 01670 622617
Date: Tuesday, 29 March 2022

Dear Sir or Madam,
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OSC to be
held in NEW MEETING SPACE, BLOCK 1, FLOOR 2, COUNTY HALL, MORPETH,
NORTHUMBERLAND, NE61 2EF on WEDNESDAY, 6 APRIL 2022 at 2.00 PM.
Yours faithfully

Daljit Lally
Chief Executive
To Communities and Place OSC members as follows:J Reid (Chair), M Mather (Vice-Chair), S Bridgett, E Cartie, G Castle, R Dodd, B Gallacher,
C Hardy, N Morphet and M Richardson
Any member of the press or public may view the proceedings of this meeting live on our
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV. Members of the
press and public may tweet, blog etc during the live broadcast as they would be able to
during a regular Committee meeting.
Members are referred to the risk assessment, previously circulated, for meetings held in
County Hall. Masks should be worn when moving round but can be removed when
seated, social distancing should be maintained, hand sanitiser regularly used and
members requested to self-test twice a week at home, in line with government
guidelines.

Daljit Lally, Chief Executive
County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF
T: 0345 600 6400
www.northumberland.gov.uk

AGENDA
PART I
It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda
will be dealt with in public.

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

MINUTES

(Pages 1
- 10)

Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Place OSC, held on 2
March 2022, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true record and signed by
the Chair.
3.

DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests,
members are required to disclose any personal interest (which includes
any disclosable pecuniary interest) they may have in any of the items
included on the agenda for the meeting in accordance with the Code of
Conduct adopted by the Council on 4 July 2012, and are reminded that if
they have any personal interests of a prejudicial nature (as defined under
paragraph 17 of the Code Conduct) they must not participate in any
discussion or vote on the matter.
NB Any member needing clarification must contact the Monitoring Officer
at monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Please refer to the guidance
on disclosures at the rear of this Agenda letter.

4.

FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS

(Pages
11 - 14)

To note the latest Forward Plan of key decisions. Any further changes
made to the Forward Plan will be reported to the Committee.
5.

SCRUTINY

5.1

Development of the Potland Burn Biodiversity Net Gain Site
The Cabinet considered this report on 8 March 2022, which sought
approval for the capital and revenue expenditure that would be incurred in
the development of the first phase of the Potland Burn biodiversity net gain
site and which was fully funded by a S.106 contribution by Britishvolt, and
for the capital and revenue budgets to be amended. The report also set
out the likely need for further habitat creation at this site to meet the
biodiversity net gain requirements for future strategic scale inward
investment. (The report and extract from the Cabinet minutes are
enclosed).
The Committee will also be advised of potential resource implications for
the Planning Service arising from the introduction of mandatory biodiversity

Communities and Place OSC, 6 April 2022

(Pages
15 - 24)

net gain, the new burdens funding being provided by Defra and the
uncertainties created by that, and possible options to address these prior to
a full report being presented to Cabinet in May 2022.
The Committee are requested to consider and comment on the
implementation of the proposals.
The Cabinet Member requested to attend for the following item is
Councillor Colin Horncastle.
6.

OVERVIEW

6.1

Presentation on Great Northumberland Forest

(Pages
25 - 30)

To receive an overview of progress in creating the Great Northumberland
Forest.
The Cabinet Member requested to attend for the following item is
Councillor Glen Sanderson.
6.2

Local Services – Highways Maintenance

(Pages
31 - 60)

To provide an overview on the operation and challenges of Highways
Maintenance.
The Cabinet Member requested to attend for the following item is
Councillor Colin Horncastle.
7.

REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY CO-ORDINATOR
Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work
Programme and Monitoring Report
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee operates within a work programme
which is agreed at the start of the Council year. The programme is
reviewed at each meeting so that it can be adjusted to reflect the wishes of
the Committee and take account of any changes to the latest Forward Plan
(which outlines decisions to be taken by the Cabinet). The Committee is
asked to review and note its work programme for the 2021/22 council year.

8.

URGENT BUSINESS
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

Communities and Place OSC, 6 April 2022

(Pages
61 - 68)

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE:
● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussion or as soon as it
becomes apparent to you.
● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.
Name (please print):

Meeting:
Date:
Item to which your interest relates:

Nature of Registerable Personal Interest i.e either disclosable pecuniary interest (as
defined by Annex 2 to Code of Conduct or other interest (as defined by Annex 3 to Code
of Conduct) (please give details):

Nature of Non-registerable Personal Interest (please give details):

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?

1. Registerable Personal Interests – You may have a Registerable Personal Interest if the
issue being discussed in the meeting:
a) relates to any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined by Annex 1 to the Code of
Conduct); or

Communities and Place OSC, Wednesday, 6 April 2022

b) any other interest (as defined by Annex 2 to the Code of Conduct)
The following interests are Disclosable Pecuniary Interests if they are an interest of either you
or your spouse or civil partner:
(1) Employment, Office, Companies, Profession or vocation; (2) Sponsorship; (3) Contracts
with the Council; (4) Land in the County; (5) Licences in the County; (6) Corporate Tenancies
with the Council; or (7) Securities - interests in Companies trading with the Council.
The following are other Registerable Personal Interests:
(1) any body of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management) to
which you are appointed or nominated by the Council; (2) any body which (i) exercises
functions of a public nature or (ii) has charitable purposes or (iii) one of whose principal
purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade
union) of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management ); or (3)
any person from whom you have received within the previous three years a gift or hospitality
with an estimated value of more than £50 which is attributable to your position as an elected or
co-opted member of the Council.
2. Non-registerable personal interests - You may have a non-registerable personal interest
when you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or subcommittees, and you are, or ought reasonably to be, aware that a decision in relation to an
item of business which is to be transacted might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well
being or financial position, or the well being or financial position of a person described below to
a greater extent than most inhabitants of the area affected by the decision.
The persons referred to above are: (a) a member of your family; (b) any person with whom you
have a close association; or (c) in relation to persons described in (a) and (b), their employer,
any firm in which they are a partner, or company of which they are a director or shareholder.
3. Non-participation in Council Business
When you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or subcommittees, and you are aware that the criteria set out below are satisfied in relation to any
matter to be considered, or being considered at that meeting, you must : (a) Declare that fact
to the meeting; (b) Not participate (or further participate) in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting; (c) Not participate in any vote (or further vote) taken on the matter at the meeting;
and (d) Leave the room whilst the matter is being discussed.
The criteria for the purposes of the above paragraph are that: (a) You have a registerable or
non-registerable personal interest in the matter which is such that a member of the public
knowing the relevant facts would reasonably think it so significant that it is likely to prejudice
your judgement of the public interest; and either (b) the matter will affect the financial position
of yourself or one of the persons or bodies referred to above or in any of your register entries;
or (c) the matter concerns a request for any permission, licence, consent or registration sought
by yourself or any of the persons referred to above or in any of your register entries.
This guidance is not a complete statement of the rules on declaration of interests which
are contained in the Members’ Code of Conduct. If in any doubt, please consult the
Monitoring Officer or relevant Democratic Services Officer before the meeting.

Communities and Place OSC, 6 April 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
At a meeting of the Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee
on Wednesday, 2 March 2022 at 2.00 p.m.
PRESENT
Councillor J. Reid
(Chair, in the Chair)
MEMBERS
Cartie, E.
Castle, G.
Dodd, R.R.
Gallacher, B.

Hardy, C.
Mather, M.
Morphet, N.
Richardson, M.
CABINET MEMBERS

Sanderson, G.

Leader of the Council

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE
M. Baker

Service Director - Climate Change,
Business Intelligence and
Performance
Scrutiny Co-Ordinator
Libraries Services Manager
Democratic Services Officer
Interim Service Director for Culture,
Leisure & Tourism

S. Nicholson
A. Peaden (Virtual)
N. Turnbull
N. Walsh

50.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bridgett.

51.

MINUTES
Councillor Gallacher expressed his gratitude to officers who had provided
updates and more information following recent meetings.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings of the Communities
and Place OSC, as circulated, be confirmed as a true record and signed by
the Chair:
a)
b)

Ch.’s Initials………

12 January 2022
2 February 2022

Page 1

52.

FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS
The Committee considered the Forward Plan of key decisions (February to
May 2022). (Schedule enclosed with the signed minutes).
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator reported that it was proposed that the Committee
consider the implementation of proposals for the Development of the Potland
Burn Biodiversity Net Gain Site, at the meeting in April 2022.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.

53.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REPORT
53.1

Library Service Strategy 2021 – 26

The report provided an update on the development of the Library Service
Strategy from 2021 – 26. (A copy of the report is enclosed with the signed
minutes.)
Nigel Walsh, Interim Service Director for Culture, Leisure & Tourism and
Alison Peaden, Libraries Services Manager, outlined the key findings from the
Library Service public consultation which identified priorities from members of
the public, staff and stakeholders and had taken place in late 2019 and early
2020 and the three-stage approach to the service redesign:
•
•
•

Strengthening the core service
Establishment of library hubs within each locality area
Extending reach and partnerships.

He provided an overview of the service which was a statutory function under
the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964, gave a brief overview of the
consultation and performance data for October – December 2021.
Key improvements to strengthen the core service (phase a), included focus
on:
• digital with an improved offer through Borrowbox and Pressreader, online
groups and a digital helpline; additional posts including supervisor, library
and digital resource assistants and apprenticeship posts,
• resources to assist with the transformation of the service and Covid
Outbreak Management funding to assist residents re-engaging with
Council services and with their communities.
• and marketing to increase general awareness of the service and street
signage, monthly newsletter.
• Select and collect, befriending calls and more recently, Reading Friends
groups.
Due to the sparse and rural nature of the county and an inability to provide the
same scope of service at 30 locations, 5 hub libraries had been established at
Blyth, Berwick, Cramlington, Hexham and Morpeth (second phase). This
Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 2

enabled a specific offer in each of the locality areas for reading, digital, health
and culture appropriate to the needs in those areas.
The third phase involved exploration of new partnerships within the council
and externally to increase reach, impact and ability to improve quality of lives.
They were working closely with Northumberland Communities Together and
also local community groups at smaller facilities and reassessing the role of
volunteers.
He was extremely proud of the library staff and the way they had adapted new
ways of working throughout the pandemic. He also expressed his
appreciation to Members for the support given to the service.
The Libraries Service Manager commented that the service was on a
programme of redesign and recovery. They had adapted to meet changing
needs during the pandemic and hoped to proceed in the future with the best of
what had worked previously utilising a hybrid model, which would include
participation in events virtually or in person, depending on preference.
She also referred to the establishment of Business and Intellectual Property
Centres which had been established during the pandemic at Berwick, Hexham
and Morpeth. These had been funded by the British Library and
complemented the work of Advance Northumberland which enabled
individuals and entrepreneurs to explore if new business ideas or inventions
could be put into practice.
Members made the following comments:
•
•
•
•

The work of Northumberland Communities Together (NCT) was praised.
Officers and staff were thanked for their efforts and activities during the
pandemic who went above and beyond the roles.
Be mindful that many residents were not digitally connected.
To be mindful of possible changes to public transport and facilities such as
bus stops.

The following information was provided in response to questions:
•

•
•
•

Library staff were not required to have enhanced DBS checks as their
policy were very clear in that they were never left alone with a group of
children as teachers or parents would also always be in attendance. This
was kept under review.
Library staff had excellent local knowledge of facilities, groups and clubs in
their areas, and whilst this might not be formally documented, they would
signpost individuals to outside resources, when required.
The role of NCT Locality Coordinators was to make links with community
organisations.
Community groups were encouraged to talk to library staff to raise
awareness of organisations and the assistance and facilities they
provided.

Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 3

•
•
•
•
•

They had digital champions who could assist users in a group setting or on
a 1:1 basis so individuals could learn at their own pace and in a way that
suited them.
They were keen to support residents to use their electronic devices to
engage with the Council and use their own equipment for a wider range of
uses.
A new design of vehicle was being explored to replace existing vehicles in
the mobile library service so they could be multi-functional carrying book
stock but also be used for outreach activities.
The Library Strategy covered the period 2021 – 26
Borrowbox facilitates the purchase of licences to access eBooks and
eAudio material. Customer feedback had preferred this platform to an
alternative digital service previously used that had been more difficult to
use.

The Interim Service Director for Culture, Leisure and Tourism was extremely
confident that the strategy was working well, there was a stable platform going
forward to support the core service, the library hubs had been established and
work was progressing on the third phase to expand reach and partnerships.
There was no final position as they hoped to continue to innovate and
understand the needs of communities. It was still challenging to understand
residents attitude to reengaging following the pandemic. He thought they were
in a good place.
The Chair concluded that the strategy was being delivered and hoped work
continued. He looked forward to a further update in the future.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.

54.

SCRUTINY OF CABINET REPORT
The Committee were advised that the following report would be considered by
the Cabinet on 8 March 2022. Members were requested to comment on the
proposals in the report.
54.1

Climate Change Update

The report provides an update on progress against the Climate Change Action
Plan 2021-23, published in January 2021. (A copy of the report is enclosed
with the signed minutes.)
Glen Sanderson, Leader of the Council explained that following the declaration
of a Climate Change Emergency three years ago, Climate Change had
become an integral part of the Council policies including the Northumberland
Local Plan. Discussions had been held with various action groups across the
county and had resulted a Steering Group and an all-party Member Working
Group being established to progress the Climate Change Action Plan. The
next stage involved further work with community groups and a £50,000
Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 4

Community Chest fund had been set up for local environmental improvements.
He was very proud of the officers for the progress made to date and grateful to
members for their support.
Matt Baker, Service Director for Climate Change, Business Intelligence and
Corporate Performance presented the report to the Committee. He stated that
the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) had recently released
a 4,200-page report and highly recommended that members read António
Guterres, UN Secretary-General, commentary on it.
Whilst the climate change net zero target was important to the Council, other
equally important aspects included community engagement, inward
investment, tackling fuel poverty, education, stewardship of the county and the
largest behavioural change programme in the world.
Key achievements to date and areas of focus in the future included:
• Engagement with 16% of the 152,000 households in the county in the
previous 18 months across a range of climate schemes and wards.
• Installation of more electric chargers per head of population than any other
local authority. The programme was to be accelerated over the next 3
years to assist residents who would not be able to install them at their own
homes.
• Home improvements including heating, insulation and power to improve
resilience following extreme weather events. Synthetic fuel was an
alternative where an electric system was not suitable.
• Consideration of in-house delivery of initiatives rather than private sector
delivery to target delivery.
• 3 million trees planted by the end of the year as part of the Great
Northumberland Forest, which comprised pockets of trees, with the right
tree in the right place to improve carbon sequestration. Woodland
management was also required as part of the storm clean up.
• The target to halve carbon emissions by 2025 had been achieved ahead of
schedule as a result of solar generation, replacement heating systems and
a reduction in business miles due to the pandemic. Calculations were being
undertaken to assess the revised date net zero would be achievable.
• Officers from every service had been involved and had embraced tackling
climate change.
Net zero by 2030 would be extremely challenging. It was therefore crucial to:
• Increase engagement with residents and community partnerships.
• Increase emphasis on in-house delivery to ensure that schemes were
accessible and affordable for communities.
• Consider the changing scope arising from COP 26 including the impact of
methane, green finance etc.
The Service Director for Climate Change, Business Intelligence and Corporate
Performance outlined the recommendations and thanked the team for
Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 5

progressing the climate change agenda, officers who had taken shared
responsibility, members for their support and residents who would need to
adopt different behaviours.
The Committee had a comprehensive discussion on climate change and
raised the following issues:
• It was likely that there would be more storms in the future.
• The political unrest between Ukraine and Russia was expected to lead to
increasing costs for fuel and plans should be accelerated for alternative
energy.
• Properties in the Green Belt were subject to additional restrictions and
controls. Feedback would be given on a Councilors planning application for
solar panels.
• Significant work would be required to make good badly damaged
woodlands following the recent storms, at a significant cost. Farmers were
required to replant trees if granted a licence for removal. Some areas had
suffered little damage due to having previously planted shelter and
consideration should be given to incorporation of policies within the local
plan to plant trees and wildlife corridors adjacent to housing developments.
• Planting the right tree in the right place was welcomed.
• More tree planting was required in urban areas such as Blyth.
• It would be preferable for solar farms to be built on brownfield sites.
• In-house delivery was supported or there should be controls in place if
working with partner organisations.
• Planning enforcement should be utilised where appropriate.
• Staff and member training was welcomed.
• Careful wording be used when describing the distribution of free trees which
were in reality, seedlings / saplings. It was agreed that communication and
language was important to ensure support.
• Many residents did not identify with ward names or divisions, and it was
suggested that reference to locations would be more meaningful.
• The location of EV chargers could perhaps have been chosen due to the
cost and work required to connect to the grid. Decisions in future should be
based on where they would be most effective.
• Proposals for solar car ports were welcomed and should perhaps include
plans for biodiversity.
• There should be a survey of neglected woodland which would benefit from
being felled, cleared and replanted, for fuel, use in the building industry or
amenity use. This was referred to in the report under woodland
management which would commence for council owned wood.
• The needs of urban and rural areas were very different.
• Schemes should be open to all residents irrespective of income but perhaps
on a sliding scale. This could be considered when schemes were designed,
and approval sought from BEIS.
The following information was provided in answer to questions:

Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 6

• Answers to climate change questions could be obtained by emailing the
Service Director or climate@northumberland.gov.uk. Information would
also be available under Frequently Asked Questions on the Climate Change
page on the Council’s website.
• Ideally, they would like all members to undertake the carbon awareness
training which comprised 2 half day training sessions.
• The £50,000 Community Chest fund was expected to be live 1 April 2022 in
tranches. Applicants would need to demonstrate how the money complied
with the Action Plan, how many residents would benefit and provide a
timeframe. Grants would likely be available for £500, £1,000 and £3,000 £4,000 to enable match funding for larger grants. Successful applicants
would be required to participate in feedback sessions to encourage others.
Members were encouraged to raise awareness of the fund with community
groups. The Leader and officers were willing to attend meetings with
schools and community groups although recent on-line events had been
well attended.
• The Climate Change team were consulted on planning applications with a
climate impact and would assess the net zero impact. Officers also met
with the Director of Planning on a regular basis and were confident that the
next version of the local plan would be congruent with net zero.
• More woodland management was to be carried out in-house as part of the
Great Northumberland Forrest team.
• Fuel independence was extremely important and synthetic alternatives were
to be considered for housing in the county where properties were not
connected to the national gas grid and not suitable for electric based heat
pumps. Alternative fuel was to be trialed on some of the Council’s HGVs
and fire vehicles.
• Local members should be involved in the process regarding the locations of
EV chargers.
• Policies to encourage cycling needed to be appropriate for the location as
new towns such as Cramlington would have different requirements to older
towns, e.g. Ashington and Blyth.
• Implementation of glass and food waste recycling should be accelerated.
• Activities needed to be appropriate and fit for purpose and balanced the
views of those that were extremely passionate about the subject and those
that were less so.
• The Steering Group comprised representatives from businesses of varying
scales around the county and representatives from all services across the
council to ensure collective responsibility for decision making and achieving
net zero.
• Proposals for the locations of the next phase of EV chargers were to be
brought to scrutiny for transparency.
• There were different types of training available, carbon literacy training 2x
half-day session and a 1-hour mandatory on-line module training for staff.
• All heat sources required electricity but additional resilience to future storms
or power cuts could be obtained from an alternative heat source, such as a
wood burning stove. It was acknowledged that incorrect decisions had
been made when these had been removed and discussions were being
held with colleagues in Housing when planning schemes in the future.
Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 7

• The Council had not received any feedback on the Climate Emergency UK
scoring of the Council’s Action Plan. There would be further work to review
and include more work on Adaptations in the next version of the plan.
Consideration was also to be given to a separate Action Plan on
biodiversity. It was hoped that the exercise would be repeated annually in
order that the poor scoring for diversity and inclusion be addressed and
improved.
• The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)
provided grant funding.
• Whilst trees contributed to the sequestration of carbon, peat was much
more effective. Officers were working with the national parks to complete a
peat audit to provide baseline data.
• District heating was a key element to achieving net zero if done
successfully, avoiding high-cost inoperable systems. Officers were working
closely with the North East Local Enterprise Partnership to benefit from their
expertise to ensure that models were created that worked for residents and
balanced the risk of in-house, partnerships or external provision.
• Whilst solar panels on roofs might be preferred before installation of solar
farms on the ground, it was suggested that this perhaps be restricted to
appropriate south facing roofs. Some difficult decisions would need to be
made when attempting to become more self-sufficient and secure in power
supply; decisions should therefore be made on a case-by-case basis.
• Consideration be given as to how residents could be assisted with acquiring
solar panels as it was a complex issue as well as assistance to those on
lower incomes with grants. Community schemes such as that provided in
Suffolk, obtained a better price point.
• Funding had been obtained from Defra to understand and ensure that the
right tree was planted in the right place and detailed mapping work had
been carried out.
• It would be beneficial for the committee to receive an update on the Great
Northumberland Forest from the Programme Manager, Mark Child. The
plans for the forest did not include compulsory purchase, it was a voluntary
community led initiative which should involve many groups and encourage
access and enjoyment; the forest was not necessarily connected
geographically.
Councillors Cartie and Richardson left the meeting at 3.52 p.m.
It was agreed that the Woodland and Tree Strategy should be separate to the
update on the Great Northumberland Forest.
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator confirmed that the Climate Change Update report
had already been issued to Cabinet members and that he would provide a
separate report which detailed the Committee’s suggested changes to the
recommendations. These included:
• Members receive details of how they can raise issues with and seek advice
from the Climate Change team.

Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 8

• All members should undertake the carbon literacy training therefore
recommendation 3 in the report be amended to:
“Executive Directors and all cabinet members should complete carbon
literacy training in 2022/23, carbon literacy training be made available to all
elected members, noting that depending on take up additional resources
may be required to deliver this training in 2022/23”.
• An additional recommendation be considered:
“The process for dealing with planning applications include positive
consideration of the delivery of low carbon solutions or other solutions that
support the delivery of net zero by 2030, be included in the review of the
Local Plan and completed jointly by the Planning team and the Climate
Change team. This work be completed alongside the Climate Change
service continuing to be a consulted party on all planning applications that
impact (positively or negatively) the commitment to deliver net zero by 2030
for the county.”
RESOLVED that the Cabinet be advised that the Committee supports the
recommendations in the report, subject to the amendments set out above.

55.

REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY CO-ORDINATOR
Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee Monitoring
Report
The Committee reviewed its work programme for the 2021/22 council year.
(Report enclosed with the signed minutes).
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator requested members consider proposals for work
programme for 2022/23. He also reported the following changes to the work
programme:
April 2022
Presentation on Great Northumberland Forest (if preparation time permitted).
Development of the Potland Burn Biodiversity Net Gain Site
May 2022
Bus Service Improvement Plan
Concessionary Travel Reimbursement
RESOLVED that the work programme be noted.

CHAIR _______________________
Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 9

DATE _______________________

Ch.’s Initials………
Communities and Place OSC, 2 March 2022

Page 10

Agenda Item 4
FORTHCOMING CABINET DECISIONS APRIL TO JULY 2022
DECISION

PROPOSED
SCRUTINY DATE

Blyth Relief Road
To provide an update on progress made
towards Blyth Relief Road and secure
approval for next steps. The report will
outline:

CSEG OSC
11 April 2022

CABINET DATE

12 April 2022

- Route alignment proposals
- Key information from the Outline Business
Case
- Next steps
(W. Ploszaj/S. McNaughton 07827 873139)
Berwick Partnership Organisation
FACS OSC
This report sets out the findings of the
7 April 2022
informal meetings that have taken place
with schools in the Berwick Partnership
since April 2021 to discuss the
organisational issues facing the partnership
and to identify potential models of
organisation that could address those
issues. The results of an informal survey
with parents and the wider community in the
area served by Berwick Partnership are also
included in the report.
Cabinet is also asked to permit the initiation
of a further period of informal consultation
with stakeholders in the area served by
Berwick Partnership schools to establish
whether any models of organisation that
may be brought forward at a later date for
consultation should consist of only 3-tier
models of organisation or include 3-tier and
2-tier (primary/secondary) models of
education.
(G. Renner Thompson/S. Aviston - 01670
622281)
Procurement of Specialist Dementia
Service

HWB OSC
TBC

The report will seek approval for funding of
a Specialist Dementia Service. Cost of the
service is approximately £967,000 per year.
The costs will be shared with the NHS and

Page 11

12 April 2022
Council 4 May 2022

12 April 2022

come from within existing resource.
(W. Pattison/Neil Bradley 01670 622868)
Biodiversity Net Gain and New Burdens
Funding

C&P OSC
6 April 2022

10 May 2022

C&P OSC
11 May 2022

10 May 2022

Financial Performance 2021-22 –
Provisional Outturn 2021-22
The report will provide Cabinet with the
revenue financial position as at Provisional
Outturn for the Council against the Budget
for 2021-22
(R. Wearmouth/S. Dent 01670 625515)

N/A

7 June 2022

Trading Companies’ Financial
Performance 2021-22 - Position at the
end of March 2022
The purpose of the report is to ensure that
the Cabinet is informed of the current
financial positions of its trading companies
for 2021-22
(R. Wearmouth/M. Calvert - 01670 620197)
(Confidential report)

CSEG OSC
6 June 2022

7 June 2022

Trading Companies’ Financial
Performance 2022-23 - Position at the

12 September 2022

13 September 2022

The Environment Act 2021 introduces
significant changes to the way in which
planning applications will be determined by
imposing a requirement to demonstrate a
net gain in the value of habitats as a result
of the development process, achieved
through their creation on or off the
development site. The Act imposes a range
of new duties for Local Planning Authorities
to oversee, verify and monitor this process.
This report sets out the resource
implications for the Planning Service arising
from the introduction of mandatory
biodiversity net gain, the new burdens
funding being provided by Defra and the
uncertainties created by that, and explores
options to address these.
(C. Horncastle/D. Feige 01670 622653)
Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 202225
To update on Electric Vehicle Charging
Infrastructure and proposals for increasing
provision across the next three years.
(G. Sanderson/ Matt Baker 07957 385638)

Page 12

end of June 2022
The purpose of the report is to ensure that
the Cabinet is informed of the current
financial positions of its trading companies
for 2022-23
(R. Wearmouth/M. Calvert - 01670 620197)
(Confidential report)

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5a

D

CABINET
DATE: 8 MARCH 2022
DEVELOPMENT OF THE POTLAND BURN BIODIVERSITY NET GAIN SITE
AND APPROVAL OF CAPITAL AND REVENUE EXPENDITURE
Report of Interim Executive Director of Planning and Local Services
Cabinet Member: Cllr Horncastle, Portfolio Holder for Community Services

Purpose of report
To seek approval for the capital and revenue expenditure that will be incurred in the
development of the first phase of the Potland Burn biodiversity net gain site and which is
fully funded by a S.106 contribution by Britishvolt, and for the capital and revenue budgets
to be amended. To set out the likely need for further habitat creation at this site to meet the
biodiversity net gain requirements for future strategic scale inward investment.
Recommendations
To approve
1. The creation of an earmarked reserve using the developer contributions in order to
fund the scheme over the lifetime of the reserve
2. The creation of a capital expenditure budget of £450,000 (as profiled below) which
will be funded from the reserve as a revenue contribution to capital
3. The creation of a revenue expenditure budget of £1,688,400 (including the revenue
contribution to fund the capital expenditure) as set out in paragraphs 4 to 6 below, all
of which will be externally funded using the developer contributions.
4. The addition of the capital element of expenditure to the capital programme and the
amendment to the revenue budget as per the profile in paragraph 7.
5. The use of the Potland Burn site in meeting future biodiversity net gain requirements
for strategic employment sites.
Link to Corporate Plan
The development of the site at Potland Burn for biodiversity net gain will support the following
aspects of the corporate plan:
Thriving: We want to attract more and better jobs

Page 15

The introduction of a requirement for biodiversity net gain currently as a policy requirement
but shortly as a national mandatory condition of obtaining planning permission. This requires
that the Council to take action to ensure that land will be available for habitat creation, to
meet net gain requirements for inward investment schemes and other developments of
importance to the Council’s economic strategy. Failure to do so will place Northumberland
at a competitive and comparative disadvantage compared to other areas where net gain
land has been made available. Due to its size, the nature of the land and its location in southeast Northumberland, the Potland Burn site is both well suited and critical to this
requirement.
Living: We want you to feel safe, healthy and cared for and Enjoying: We want you to love
where you live
While some of the habitats to be created at Potland Burn will not be suitable for public access
due to disturbance issues, extensive areas will be suitable for access through an enhanced
footpath/cycling network. This will provide further green space on the edge of Ashington,
alongside Ashington Community Woodland.
Key issues
1. The Britishvolt planning application was the highest financial value application
determined by the County Council since LGR. It presented a number of challenges
due to the scale of the development. From an ecological perspective, over the time
that the coal stocking yard was unused it developed a range of valuable ecological
features. Furthermore, as a planning application that fell to be determined under the
Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations there was a particular need to be
able to demonstrate that ecological issues had been addressed thoroughly and
transparently. For these reasons it was agreed with Britishvolt that they would need
to develop a scheme that demonstrated a biodiversity net gain of at least 10% based
on the metric published by Defra for this purpose.
2. The main challenge arising from this specific requirement was to identify land suitable
for habitat creation that was reasonably close to Cambois and available for this
purpose, a challenge that was magnified by the speed at which Britishvolt needed to
secure planning permission. Fortunately, the Potland Burn site met all of those
requirements. There is no realistic prospect of development on most of the former
surface mine and, being in the early stages of aftercare following restoration from
surface mining primarily to agriculture it is essentially a blank canvas, comprising
fields sown to a temporary grass ley. This means that appropriate habitat creation
can secure a significant uplift in ecological value, giving it a high value per hectare
for net gain purposes. This approach also removes the need for extensive and
engineered under drainage to be installed at the site, which was a requirement of the
planning conditions attached to the original opencast permission. The estimated
value of the works outstanding in 2020 was approximately £400,000.
3.

Because the Potland Burn site is in the ownership of Advance Northumberland, it is
a party to the S.106 Agreement as well as Britishvolt and Northumberland County
Council. The Agreement obliges Advance Northumberland to allow the Council to
manage this area of land for the purpose of habitat creation and management for
biodiversity net gain. Accordingly, the Agreement ensures that the scheme can
proceed as set out in this report irrespective of whether the land remains in the
-2-

Page 16

ownership of Advance Northumberland or is transferred to Northumberland County
Council.

4. The metric-based calculations shows that an area of 67ha is required for habitat
creation at Potland Burn to secure the necessary 10% biodiversity net gain for the
Britishvolt scheme. This work will be managed by specialists within Northumberland
County Council’s Environment and Design Team with funding from Britishvolt. The
level of funding contribution has been calculated using guidance contained in the
Government’s economic impact assessment of the Environment Bill and the
experience of LPAs that have adopted net gain already, and on this basis the Section
106 Agreement for the planning permission commits Britishvolt to make
a contribution of £1,688,400 to the Council for habitat creation at Potland Burn and
its subsequent management for a period of at least 30 years. This is to be paid in two
equal instalments; the first prior to commencement of development and the second
within two years of the first payment. The first payment is expected to be received
during the first quarter in 2022/23.
5. Capital expenditure will be incurred primarily during the first few years of the scheme
as the new habitats are created and is likely to be in the region of £450,000. This will
be for the excavation of an extensive network of ponds and wet scrapes; the sowing
of wildflower mixes and the collection, growing on and planting of plug plants of
scarce species growing on a site adjacent to this one; the planting of trees and scrub,
access improvements and construction of a small livestock shed and handling
facilities. It is difficult to profile this expenditure precisely at this point as an Officer
needs to be recruited to take the project forward, soil nutrient testing undertaken to
refine the habitat creation measures required and a work schedule drawn up that
takes account of the various restrictions on the site. These mean that most of the
larger scale work will need to be undertaken in late summer and autumn; after the
bird breeding season and before the soil becomes too wet in winter.
6. Revenue funding will comprise officer time which will be 1.0fte initially estimated to
be for three years during establishment. The budget will be reviewed once the capital
element of works is completed but it is hoped future developments will contribute to
further work at Potland Burn including this officer post, as well as ongoing
management of habitats and maintenance of site fabric for a period of at least 30
years. Subject to changes in funding levels, any associated redundancy costs will be
met from contributions received to date. It is proposed to create an earmarked
reserve from contributions received and use it to fund the revenue and capital costs
over the lifetime of the project.

-3-

Page 17

7. The estimated profile of spending over financial years is shown below:
2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£

£

£

2025 2052
£

Total
£

Capital Expenditure

200,000

200,000

50,000

0

450,000

Revenue Expenditure
Staffing
Running costs of site
Revenue contribution to Capital

38,540
20,000
200,000

40,690
20,000
200,000

42,870
20,000
50,000

382,360
673,940
0

504,460
733,940
450,000

Total Revenue*

258,540

260,690

112,870

1,056,300 1,688,400

*Funded from the S106 Contribution
8. Now that the Environment Bill has been enacted and biodiversity net gain is to
become mandatory, it is also important to consider the nature and extent of habitat
creation that is likely to be required to ensure that the requisite net gain can be
achieved as key strategic employment sites such as NEP 2, Ashwood and West
Hartford are developed. Failure to do so at this stage will mean that these matters
would then have to be addressed on a case-by-case basis once an investor was
actively engaging in a site selection process. This would add risk by creating
uncertainty, delay and additional cost that would reduce the attractiveness of the
Council’s key inward investment sites. This is especially important as it is anticipated
that the Britishvolt development will attract significant supply chain companies which
will be looking for sites in north-east England. These requirements can be roughly
estimated based on the vegetation communities present on the sites, although exact
requirements will depend on the land take of any particular development and the
potential for meaningful habitat creation on the development site itself.
9. A further 35ha will be available within the parcel of land already identified for use for
biodiversity net gain at Potland Burn, and this could accommodate about 30% of the
potential requirement arising from strategic employment sites in south-east
Northumberland. There is a further 50ha of land within the former surface mine site
on the western side of Longhirst Lane, excluding areas identified as having
development potential in the medium to long term. If this was to be made available
for habitat creation for net gain purposes it could accommodate about 50% of the
potential future requirement arising from the development of strategic employment
sites. Discussions are ongoing with the Council’s Strategic Estates Team to identify
further sites. As with Britishvolt, all of this work would be fully funded by developers
and secured through S.106 Agreements.

-4-

Page 18

Background
1. The Britishvolt planning application was the first time that the Planning Service used
Defra’s recently developed biodiversity net gain metric to quantify ecological impacts
and ensure that enhancement was provided sufficient to demonstrate a 10% net gain
in ecological value overall. However, the Environment Act received the Royal Assent
in November 2021 and it introduces a mandatory requirement for most types of
planning application to demonstrate a net gain of at least 10%, which will come into
effect in autumn 2023.
2. Where the land being developed is of low ecological value and there is space within
the development for some habitat creation, it will be possible to satisfy that
requirement on site through appropriate landscaping. However, where more
important habitats will be impacted and space for habitat creation on site is limited,
habitat creation off-site will be required. A recently published Market Analysis Study
commissioned by Defra estimates that about 50% of new habitat will be delivered off
site when net gain becomes mandatory.
3. While there is no requirement for local authorities to be proactive in helping
developers to meet their net gain requirements, it will inevitably become an important
aspect of developers’ site selection processes, given the costs, additional work and
potential delays involved. Accordingly ensuring that there is land available to meet
net gain requirements for strategic employment sites will secure a significant
advantage as developers consider the potential sites available to them, while failure
to do so may make sites elsewhere more attractive to developers. Accordingly, this
now needs to be an important aspect of the Council’s approach to securing inward
investment and meeting its economic regeneration aspirations.
4. The Environment Act requires that habitats created to meet net gain requirements are
managed to keep them in their intended state for a period of at least 30 years. To
assist developers and local planning authorities in the costing of such work Defra has
commissioned research and provided guidance, firstly in the Impact Assessment
published with the Environment Bill in 2019 and more recently in a Market Analysis
Study published with the consultation on biodiversity net gain regulations and
implementation that opened in January 2022. The Environment Bill Impact
Assessment together with experience from local authorities that have pioneered the
use of offsetting and net gain approaches were used to calculate Britishvolt’s financial
contribution for the work at Potland Burn. The more recently published Market
Analysis Study supports the figures used.

-5-

Page 19

Implications
Policy

By facilitating inward investment the development
of Potland Burn as a strategic net gain site will strongly support
the Council’s economic strategy. It also accords with the draft
Northumberland Local Plan, in that it will ensure that net gain is
secured at a site that is located in an ecologically appropriate
area, being within the South East Northumberland Wildlife
Network and Northumberland Coalfield Nature Improvement
Area. Importantly it is also of a large enough scale to secure
meaningful ecological benefits. Therefore it will help to deliver
important employment-generating schemes by ensuring that
they accord with policies ENV1 and ENV 2 of the Plan.

Finance and
value for
money

All of the work set out in this report is funded completely by
developer contributions, and so there will be no cost to the
Council.

Legal

The Council, Advance Northumberland and Britishvolt are
signatories to a S.106 Agreement, part of which governs the
creation and management of new habitats on 67ha of land at
Potland Burn by the Council, funded by Britishvolt.
The recommendations relate to an executive function with the
meaning of S.9D(2) Local Government Act 2000 as the
expenditure is not an exception specified in regulations made
under subsection 3 of that Act.

Procurement

All work to be commissioned will be subject to the Council’s
procurement rules.

Human
Resources

An Officer will be recruited to the Environment and Design Team
in Planning Services to lead this work. A job description and
person specification has been through evaluation and Human
Resources has provided a job description number.

Property

The site will be managed by specialists within the Environment
and Design Team in the Planning Service in the same way as the
Cambois Wader Mitigation Site is currently managed.

Equalities

n/a

(Impact
Assessment
attached)

Yes ☐ No ☐
N/A
☐
Risk
Assessment

The Britishvolt funding for habitat creation and management has
been secured by a legal agreement and will fully cover the costs
-6-

Page 20

involved, and so it is considered that this falls below the threshold
for which a formal risk assessment is required.
Crime
Disorder

& n/a

Customer
Consideration

The use of a biodiversity net gain approach to resolving
ecological impacts at the development site enabled Britishvolt to
secure planning permission within its required timescale.

Carbon
reduction

The extensively managed wetland, grassland and scrub habitats
to be created at Potland Burn all play a significant role in carbon
sequestration, helping to meet the Council’s carbon reduction
targets.

Health and
Wellbeing

While some of the areas will be sensitive to disturbance and so
not suitable for public access, other areas will be capable of
sustaining a level of managed access and so will provide an
important greenspace resource.

Wards

Bothal, Pegswood

Background papers:
S.106 Agreement for 21/00818/FULES Construction of battery factory at Cambois coal
stocking yard
Report sign off.
Authors must ensure that officers and members have agreed the content of the
report:
Full Name of
Officer
Suki Binjal
Alison Elsdon
Rob Murfin
Daljit Lally
Cllr C Horncastle
Neil Masson

Monitoring Officer/Legal
Deputy Section 151 Officer
Relevant Executive Director
Chief Executive
Portfolio Holder(s)
Legal Clearance

Author and Contact Details
David Feige, Environment and Design Team Manager & County Ecologist
(01670) 622653 david.feige@northumberland.gov.uk

-7-

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
At a meeting of the Cabinet held at County Hall, Morpeth on Tuesday, 8 March
2022 at 10.00 am.
PRESENT
Councillor G. Sanderson
(Leader of the Council, in the Chair)

CABINET MEMBERS
Horncastle, C.
Pattison, W.
Ploszaj, W.
Renner-Thompson, G.

Riddle, J.R.
Watson, J.G.
Wearmouth, R.

OTHER MEMBERS
Stewart, G.

99.

Seymour, C.

REPORT OF INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND
LOCAL SERVICES
Development of the Potland Burn Biodiversity Net Gain Site and
Approval of Capital and Revenue Expenditure
The report sought approval for the capital and revenue expenditure that
would be incurred in the development of the first phase of the Potland Burn
biodiversity net gain site and which was fully funded by a S.106 contribution
by Britishvolt, and for the capital and revenue budgets to be amended. The
report also set out the likely need for further habitat creation at this site to
meet the biodiversity net gain requirements for future strategic scale inward
investment (copy attached to the signed minutes as Appendix D).

RESOLVED that:(a) Cabinet approve the creation of an earmarked reserve using the developer
contributions in order to fund the scheme over the lifetime of the reserve;
Ch.’s Initials………

1

Page 23

(b) Cabinet approve the creation of a capital expenditure budget of £450,000
(as profiled below) which will be funded from the reserve as a revenue
contribution to capital;
(c) Cabinet approve the creation of a revenue expenditure budget of
£1,688,400 (including the revenue contribution to fund the capital
expenditure) as set out in paragraphs 4 to 6 of the report, all of which will
be externally funded using the developer contributions;
(d) Cabinet approve the addition of the capital element of expenditure to the
capital programme and the amendment to the revenue budget as per the
profile in paragraph 7; and
(e) Cabinet approve the use of the Potland Burn site in meeting future
biodiversity net gain requirements for strategic employment sites.

CHAIR……………………………………..
DATE……………………………………….

Cabinet, 8 March 2022

2

Page 24

Agenda Item 6a

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
6 APRIL 2021
GREAT NORTHUMBERLAND FOREST UPDATE
Report of:

Mark Child, GNF Programme Manager

Cabinet Member:

Councillor Glen Sanderson, Leader

The purpose of this report is to provide – via the short presentation set out below an update on the progress being made to establish the Great Northumberland
Forest.

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Communities and Place Scrutiny
Presentation on Highway Maintenance
Click to add text

David Laux, Head of Technical Services

Agenda Item 6b

April 2022

Agenda

Page 32

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Introductions
Highway Law
The Highway Asset
Asset Management Processes
Roads Inspection and Repair
Footways, Bridges, Drainage and Other Assets
Budgets
Performance
Improvement and Innovation

Introductions

Page 33

Highway Law on Maintenance
Why do we do it?

Page 34

The authority who are for the time being the highway authority for a
highway maintainable at the public expense are under a duty... to
maintain the highway.
(Highways Act 1980 – Section 41 (1))

Special defence in action against a highway authority for damages for
non-repair of highway.

Page 35

● In an action against a highway authority in respect of damage resulting from
their failure to maintain a highway maintainable at the public expense it is a
defence to prove that the authority had taken such care as in all the
circumstances was reasonably required to secure that the part of the highway
to which the action relates was not dangerous for traffic.
(Highways Act 1980 – Section 58 (1))

The Highway Asset
●
●
●
Page 36

●
●
●

3200 miles roads
1600 miles footways
3,500 structures including
•
1134 bridges
•
626 culverts
•
1698 retaining walls
51,000 street lights and illuminated signs
85,000 gullies
Drainage, safety fences, verges, trees,etc

Processes to Manage and Maintain the Asset

Page 37

● Overarching Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP)
● TAMP - all asset types – carriageways, structures, footways,
lighting, drainage, restraint assets, signs and markings, soft landscaping
● Assets recorded on Highways Inventories
● Highway inspected and defects repaired
● Asset condition assessed
● Maintenance investment programmes developed and implemented
Processes allow effective management and safety of the asset and minimises
public liability exposure

Functional Road Hierarchy

Page 38

Hierarchy
Category

Hierarchy Name

Type of Road General Description

1

Major Road
Network

Major Road Network.

2

Resilient Road
Network

Roads that maintain economic activity. Designated by NCC.

3

Main Distributor

Main routes linking the (NCC) main towns to the Resilient Road Network.

4

Secondary
Distributor

Routes linking the (NCC) Service Centres to the Main Distributor Network
(or higher category road Network).

5

Major Link Road

Roads linking the Main and Secondary Distributor Networks with large
villages and residential estates, and industrial areas.

6

Minor Link Road

Roads linking smaller settlements, travelling through residential estates and
industrial area.

7

Local Access Road
(through route)

Roads serving limited numbers of properties but also facilitating travel to
other settlements.

8

Local Access Road
(dead end)

Dead end roads serving limited numbers of properties.

9

Unsurfaced Roads

Unsurfaced Roads which are generally unsuitable for normal use.

Road Inspection Frequencies

Page 39

Hierarchy
Category

Hierarchy Name

Inspection Frequency

1

Major Road Network

Monthly

2

Resilient
Road Network

Monthly

3

Main Distributor

Monthly

4

Secondary Distributor

Monthly

5

Major Link Road

Quarterly

6

Minor Link Road

Six Monthly

7

Local Access Road
(through route)

Annual

8

Local Access Road
(dead end)

Annual

9

Unsurfaced Roads

None - ad hoc as required

Inspection Processes
● 11 Highway Inspectors across County
● Each have own area of network to cover
● All inspectors undertake training to LANTRA national standard
Page 40

● Inspections scheduled with reference to different frequencies

required based on the network hierarchy.
● All inspection findings recorded
● Works orders issued for defect repairs.
● Works completion recorded

Third Party Reports of Defects

Page 41

Road
Category

Name

Target for inspecting
customer reports

1

Major Road Network

2 working days

2

Resilient Road Network

2 working days

3

Main Distributor

2 working days

4

Secondary Distributor

2 working days

5

Major Link

5 working days

6

Minor Link

5 working days

7

Local Access (through
route)

5 working days

8

Local Access (dead end)

5 working days

9

Unsurfaced

15 working days

Defect assessment and repair response times
● Defects meeting hazardous defect criteria will be repaired
● Intervention Response Times are assessed using a risk-based

Page 42

approach.
● Dependent on
Hierarchy Category
○ Position on the highway
○

● Response times for repair identified
○ 2 hours,
○ next working day,
○ 14 day,
○ 28 day
● Defect repair undertaken and recorded

Defect responses - Inspection Manual

Page 43

Reactive Repairs and Customer Complaints

Defects Raised in 2020-21 and Completed Total number 19,801
Page 44

Pothole Defects raised and completed 2020-21 Total number 13,599
Footway Defects raised and completed 2021 Total Number 2,673
Third Party Requests Received across the County in 2021 22,492

Repairs

Page 45

● Individual defect Repair
○ revenue budgets
● Patching
○ capital general maintenance budgets
○ prioritisation of repairs by area teams
○ requires street works permits
○ may require road closures
○ longer lead in times
● Consideration for more major repair
○ passed into LTP Programme Development process
○ reconstruction, resurfacing, major patching, surface dressing, micro surfacing

Reactive Repairs on the Network

Page 46

● Daily Snapshot of
reactive works
● 99 jobs in a day
● 70 jobs created
Yearly impact on the
network.

Condition Monitoring and Maintenance Programme
Development

Page 47

● Wide range of data captured in PMS Scheme Manager
● Condition data
○ Scanner – machine based inspection of A, B,C roads
○ Coarse Visual Inspection – manual inspection of U roads
● Information from Area Teams and Inspectors
● Third party concerns (Councillors, Parishes, members of the public)
● Programme developed considering hierarchy and condition
● Developing Horizons system – data analysis, treatment choices and modelling
of investment scenarios
● Introduced Camera Based asset surveys

Capital Works Schemes

Page 48

Footways
and Cycleways

Page 49

● Functional hierarchy of footways
● Deliver programme of Safety Inspections
combined with road inspections
● Respond to safety defects
● Consider patching / larger areas of flag
repair
● Larger footway maintenance schemes
through LTP programme, inc flags to flex
● Will consider LCWIP outcomes as part of
future hierarchy

Bridges

Page 50

● Detailed inventory of structures
● Includes 18 ancient monuments and 121 listed
structures
● Load carrying capacity assessed and known
● Planned programme of general inspections, with Bridge
Condition Indicator scoring for each structure
● Prioritise preventative maintenance
● Assess and manage weight and height restrictions
● Manage public risk from substandard bridges through
Interim Measures inspections and strengthening
● Carry out capital works through LTP capital programmes
● Successful DfT Challenge Fund bids for Masonry Arch
Refurbishment and Steel Bridge Refurbishment
programmes

Drainage

Page 51

● Manholes, catchpits, ditches, gullies, filter drains and
pipework.
● Deliver programme of maintenance to minimise
flooding risk to properties, danger to road users /
damage to carriageway
● Cleaning of gulleys
● Four replacement gulley emptiers arriving spring 2022
● Improving data collection
● Further review of resources once replacement gulley
emptier performance established
● Respond to defects in drains and pipework
● Deliver grip and ditch cutting programme
● Enforce ditch and grip cleaning on private land

Gully Data/Monitoring

Page 52

● Gathering data
for 24month.
● Reviewing
performance
● New Machinery
● Route based
focus on
cleansing to
improve
productivity.
● Performance
reports.

Other Assets

Page 53

Street Lighting
● Recently converted to LED
● Fault repairs and replacement of damaged columns
● Programme of statutory electrical testing
Traffic Lights
● Service provided by Regional Traffic Signals
● Annual inspections of all installations
● Repair of identified faults
● Moving to bulk lamp change approach
Signs and Lines
● Replacement and remarking - priority for key regulatory
and warning signs
Safety Fences
Soft Landscaping – verges and trees

Performance

Page 54

● Principal Road Network has consistently needed 3% of its length requiring
improvement over last 5 years – 1% better than national average.
● Non Principal Road Network (B & C roads) in 20/21 needed 6% of its length
requiring improvement – the same as the national average.
● Unclassified network condition surveys continued to show decline in condition
over last 5 years, although these may not reflect recent £15m investment.
● The Average Bridge Condition Index has also been consistent over the last 5
years between 85% and 87% of bridges considered to be in a “State of good
Repair”
● Footway Performance indicators introduced in recent years would indicate a
4% deterioration in condition.
● NCC Street Lighting has been identified as a best performing finalist in APSE
performance networks benchmarking in each of the last two years

Annual Budgets
Revenue
Highway Maintenance

£2.526m

Gulley Maintenance

£0.376m

Street Lighting

£0.664m (exc electricity)

Page 55

Capital
LTP Maintenance

£21.453m

Additional capital funding from U and C and Footway Programme, DfT Challenge
Fund bids, etc

Camera Based Surveys – Vaisala AI

Page 56

Horizons
Data analysis, treatment choices and modelling of investment scenarios

Page 57

Climate Carbon Impact (Materials used)

Page 58

Tar Bound Planings
● 10,920T recycled back into roads in
2021
● Saving circa £2m on landfill charges.
Carbon saving of 350T
Warm Temperature Asphalts
● Working with Tarmac to supply warm
mix Asphalt for NCC roads/footpaths
● 4% usage = Potential Carbon saving
of 50-80T
Developments in concrete.
● Under review to reducing cement use

Future Developments Web Reporting / Information

Page 59

Purchase of JCB Pothole Pro
• Trial held in the South East
and Castle Morpeth area in
2021.
Page 60

• Received positive feed back
from the teams using it.
• Order was placed in Feb
2022.
• Expected delivery April/May
2022

Northumberland County Council
Communities and Place Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Work Programme 2021-2022
Page 61

Agenda Item 7

Sean Nicholson: 01670 622605 – Sean.Nicholson@northumberland.gov.uk

1.

Terms of reference:
(1)

To maintain an overview of the Management Agreements in place between the County Council and Active
Northumberland, Woodhorn Museum Charitable Trust and Northumberland Tourism.

(2)

To monitor, review and make recommendations about:

Page 62

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2.

Development Planning
Neighbourhood Planning
Conservation
Housing
Climate Change
Countryside, Biodiversity and Landscape Quality
Waste Management and Energy Use
Public and Community Transport Network and Travel to School
Highway Maintenance, Streetscape and the Local Environment
Local and Neighbourhood services
Crime, Community Safety, and Fear of Crime, including CONTEST, Prevent and Channel
Antisocial Behaviour and Domestic Violence
Fire and Rescue
Emergency Services and Emergency Planning
Customer Services
Provision of Cultural and Leisure Facilities
Improving Quality of Life through Access to Culture and Leisure;
Supporting Economic Growth in the Arts, Culture and Leisure Sectors

Issues to be Timetabled/Considered
Market Strategy
Tree and Woodland Strategy
Enforcement of 20 mph Zones
Active Northumberland
Bus Service Improvement Plan
Concessionary Travel Reimbursement

22 March 2022

Northumberland County Council
Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021-2022

6 April 2022
Local Services – Highways Maintenance

To provide an overview on the operation and challenges of Highways Maintenance.

Development of the Potland Burn
Biodiversity Net Gain Site

To review the Cabinet decision in respect to this report and consider the implementation of the
proposals.

Page 63
22 March 2022

Northumberland County Council
Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee Monitoring Report 2021-2022

Report

Decision

Outcome

1.

30 June 2021

Funding for Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB)

RESOLVED that, the Cabinet be advised that the
Committee supported the recommendations contained in
the report.

Cabinet noted the Committee’s
comments when it determined this
report on 13 July 2021.

2.

30 June 2021

Unreasonably Persistent and
Vexatious Contact Policy

RESOLVED that, subject to members’ comments, the
Cabinet be advised that the Committee supported the
recommendations contained in the report.

Cabinet noted the Committee’s
comments when it determined this
report on 13 July 2021.

3.

4 August 2021

Draft Private Sector Housing
Strategy 2020-23

RESOLVED that, the Cabinet be advised that the
Committee supported the recommendations in the report.

Cabinet noted the Committee’s
comments when it determined the
report on 6 September 2021.

4.

4 August 2021

Active Northumberland
Annual Outcome Report 20202021

RESOLVED that:
1. Active Northumberland’s Annual Outcomes Report
2021-21 and Annual Service Report for 2020-21, be
received.
2. Active Northumberland be thanked for their work
during the pandemic, including support to
communities, schools and health services, which had
been incredibly valuable as well as reopening centres
quickly when permitted.
3. The Committee were encouraged by the optimism for
the future whilst noting the challenges ahead.
4. An update on the development of the partnership
agreement, membership numbers, challenges,
business plan and priorities be presented to the
Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in early 2022.

The Committee will receive an
update on the development of the
partnership agreement, membership
numbers, challenges, business plan
and priorities on 2 February 2022.

Page 64

Ref Date

5.

Active Northumberland
Annual Service Report April
2020– April 2021

22 March 2022

25 August 2021

Overview of the Fleet
Replacement Programme in
2020/2021

RESOLVED that:
1. The work undertaken to deliver a challenging fleet
replacement programme during 2020/21 and 2021/22,
be noted.
2. Cabinet be recommended to consider an invest to
save or business case to acquire more gulley wagons
to increase capacity as part of the capital programme
budget discussions.

The Committee will continue to
monitor this issue through annual
reporting.

7.

25 August 2021

Northumberland Waste
Management Strategy Kerbside Glass Collection
Trial Update

RESOLVED that:
1. The contents of the report be noted.
2. The success of the glass recycling trial scheme to
date, in terms of high customer satisfaction levels and
very high yields of glass collected per household, be
noted.
3. The Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny
Committee supported the trial and expansion of glass
recycling across Northumberland.

A further report will be presented to
the Committee on 27 October 2021
prior to determination by the Cabinet
on 9 November.

6 October 2021

Integrated Domestic Abuse
Services for Northumberland
– Permission to Tender

RESOLVED that the Cabinet be advised that the
Committee supports the recommendations in the report,
subject to consideration being given to extending the length
of the contract to three years, with an option for a further
one year to provide greater stability of service

Cabinet considered the Committee’s
comments when it determined this
report on 12 October 2021.

Page 65

6.

8.

Further reports on the
implementation of the Council’s
Domestic Abuse strategies will be
presented to the Committee
annually.

9.

6 October 2021

Northumberland Climate
Change Update

RESOLVED that the recommendations be agreed and
further updates be presented to the OSC.

A further update will be presented to
the Committee in six months.

10.

6 October 2021

NE Bus Service Improvement
Plan

RESOLVED that the presentation be noted.

Further reports will be presented to
the Committee as appropriate.

11

27 October 2021

Northumberland Waste
Management Strategy –
Outcome of Kerbside Glass
Recycling Collection Trial

RESOLVED that, subject to the comments above, the
Cabinet considered the Committee’s
Cabinet be advised that the Committee positively supported comments when it determined this
the recommendations in the report.
report on 9 November 2021.

22 March 2022

27 October 2021

Policy for Street Naming and
Numbering

RESOLVED that the Cabinet be advised that the
Committee supported the recommendations in the report
subject to a review of the consultation process with Town
and Parish Councils.

Cabinet considered the Committee’s
comments when it determined this
report on 9 November 2021.

13.

1 December 2021

Local Services –
Neighbourhood Services

RESOLVED that the presentation be received.

The Committee to consider issues
arising from the report including the
Tree and Woodland Policy and
Markets Strategy.

14.

1 December 2021

Active Travel and Road Safety
for the Journey to School

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

The Committee requested that a
report discussing enforcement of 20
mph zones be prepared for a future
meeting.

15.

1 December 2021

Destination Management –
Structure and Future Funding
Arrangements

The Committee therefore resolved that the Cabinet be
advised that the Committee supports the recommendations
in the report, subject to the comment made.

Cabinet considered the Committee’s
comments when it determined this
report on 7 December 2021.

16

12 January 2022

Complaints Improvement
Framework - Update

RESOLVED that the report be received, and the next steps
noted.

The Committee will receive the
Annual Complaints report in
September.

17.

12 January 2022

Storm Arwen Review

RESOLVED that:
1. The current terms of reference and scope of the
review, on pages 2 - 3 of the report, be agreed subject
to any changes deemed necessary by the Review
Committee.
2. The membership of the Review Committee include:
Councillors Castle, Dodd, Gallacher, Hardy, Mather,
Morphet and Reid. Councillor Bridgett be invited to be
a member of the Review Committee.
3. The final list of consultees / interviews be agreed when
the evidence is reviewed, in addition to those identified
on page 3 of the report.
4. Consultation with communities be sought via email,
letter, survey via representative sample and use of
researchers.
5. The proposed timetable on page 4 of the scoping
report, be agreed.

An invitation to elected members,
Members of Parliament, Town and
Parish Councillors, and residents
and businesses to submit written
submissions to the Review was
issued shortly after the meeting and
the first meeting of the Group was
held on 21 February 2022.

Page 66

12.

22 March 2022

6.

The findings of the review be ultimately reported to
Full Council.

18.

2 February 2022

Northumberland Fire and
Rescue Service: Community
Risk Management Plan 202226 Consultation

RESOLVED that the report be received and that the
comments be noted.

An update on the outcome of the
consultation be provided to the
Committee in due course.

19.

2 February 2022

Update on Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Constabulary
and Fire and Rescue Services
(HMICFRS) Round 2
Inspection report into
Northumberland Fire and
Rescue Service (NFRS)

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.

The Committee will continue to
receive updates as required.

20.

2 February 2022

Empty Homes in
Northumberland

RESOLVED that the content of the report be noted.

The Committee will continue to
receive updates as required.

21.

Page 67

2 February 2022

Northumberland
Infrastructure Funding
Statement

RESOLVED that:
a. The purpose and requirement for an Infrastructure
Funding Statement, be noted.
b. The summary of the Infrastructure Funding Statement
content for the financial year 2020/21, be noted.
c. The forthcoming changes to the Council’s approach to
developer contributions, upon adoption of the
Northumberland Local Plan, be noted.
d. A summary be provided to the Local Area Councils.

The Committee will receive an
update as an Annual report.

22.

2 March 2022

Climate Change Update

RESOLVED that the Cabinet be advised that the
Committee supports the recommendations in the report,
subject to the amendments requested.

Cabinet agreed to accept the
amendment and additional
recommendation at its meeting on 8
March 2022.

23.

2 March 2022

Library Service Strategy 20212025

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.

The Committee will continue to
receive updates as required.

22 March 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

